HIGHLAND COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
HIGHLAND MODULAR CONFERENCE CENTER
89 HIGHLAND CENTER DRIVE
MONTEREY, VIRGINIA
REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING
DATE: 1/7/2025
TIME: 7:30 pm

A. Call to Order

B. Annual Organization:

a.
b.

C.

Elect Chairman
Elect Vice-Chairman

Rules of Procedures — Adopt for 2025

. Chairman -~ Adopt a rule authorizing the Chairman to make motions,

which shall be in addition to his authority to vote on all questions
pursuant to Robert’s Rules of Order pertaining to conducting business

for small boards

. Board Meeting Schedule for 2025 — Establish Date, Time and Place for

monthly Regular and Work Session Meetings by Resolution {(§ 15.2-
1416)

C. Approval of Minutes

d.

November 6, 2024, November 20, 2024, December 3, 2024, and
December 18, 2024

D. Public Hearings/Public Appearances



. Public Comments on Agenda Items
Public Comments on the following Agenda Items for Action, Discussion,

Review or Information PLEASE NOTE YOU MUST COME TO THE PODIUM TO
MAKE A COMMENT.

F. Items for Action, Discussion, Review or Information

. Old Business

a. Code of Ethics

. New Business

a. Highland County Public Schools-approve the 3" Quarter
Appropriation for FY 25 School Budget

b. Schedule a Joint Public Hearing with the Planning Commission on
1/23/2025

¢. Full time assistant position

. County Administrator’s Reports, Requests and Recommendations

. Board Comments

. Consent Agenda

a. Warrant—Accounts Payable for December 2024

b. Adopt a Resolution to set the appropriations for January 2025

. Open Public Comments

a. The public comment period is an opportunity for citizens to address
the Board concerning the services, policies and affairs of the County.
Designated Time Limit for Speakers 5 minutes per speaker, for each

meeting



M. Closed Meeting (as needed)

a. 2.2-3711 (A} (1) Personnel (as needed)

b. 2.2-3711 (A} (3) Property (as needed)

c. 2.2-3711 (A) (5) Prospective Business (as needed)
d. 2.2-3711 (A) (7) Legal — (as needed)

e. 2.2-3711 (A) (8) Legal Advice — (as needed)

f. 2.2-3711 (A) (29) Contract — (as needed)

N. Adjourn / Recess

NEXT MEETING(S)

Work Session

HIGHLAND MODULAR CONFERENCE CENTER
MONTEREY, VIRGINIA

DATE: 1/15/2025

TIME: 7:30pm



2024

RULES OF PROCEDURES

HIGHLAND COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

SECTION A: CODE OF VIRGINIA

All references to the Code of Virginia shall include all subsequent amendments.

SECTION B: CREATION

The Highland County Board of Supervisors, hereinafter called the Board, is an elected
body provided by the Code of Virginia, Section 15.2-1400. It consists of three (3)
members elected at-large.

SECTION C: SEAL OF THE BOARD

When affixed to any paper or document by the Clerk, the Seal has the force and effect of
authentication for the Board.

SECTION D: PRINCIPAL ADDRESS

The principal address of the Board shall be: Courthouse, 165 W. Main Street, Highland
County, Monterey, Virginia; mailing address: P. O. Box 130, Monterey, VA 24465.

SECTION E: OFFICERS

Election and Term of Chairman and Vice-Chairman

At the annual or organizational meeting of the Board of Supervisors, the Board shall elect
from its membership a Chairman and Vice-Chairman, each of whom shall serve a term
for one year, expiring on December 31 of the year elected, or until their respective
successors shall have been elected and qualified. In the absence of the Chairman, the
Vice-Chairman shall preside at meetings.

SECTION F: TIE BREAKER

Pursuant to Code of Virginia, Section 15.2-1421, the Board may designate a tie breaker,
whose duty it shall be to cast the deciding vote in case of tie, as set forth in Code of
Virginia, Section 15.2-1420. The designation of the tie breaker shall be by election by
the voters of the county from the county at large. Every tie breaker shall serve for a
period of four years from the date of his election and every tie breaker so elected shall
serve the same term as a member of the governing body. No person shall be elected or
serve as tie breaker who is not a resident of the county; who is not qualified to hold office
as supervisor or who is an employee or officer of the county. Tie breakers heretofore

Initially Adopted: January 4, 2003



2024

appointed or elected shall continue in office until the expiration of the respective terms.
Vacancies in the position of tie breaker shall be filled in the same manner as vacancies in
the governing body.

SECTION G: COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

The County Administrator shall be Clerk to the Board, hereinafter called the Clerk,
whose duties and responsibilities shall be those set forth in State law and as delegated and
directed by the Board of Supervisors.

SECTION H: COUNTY ATTORNEY

The County Attorney provides advice and action in legal matters and represents the
Board in civil actions. The County Attorney, at the direction of the Board of Supervisors,
also provides advice and action in legal matters to the constitutional officers, zoning
administrator, building official and other departments and agencies of the County.

SECTION1: PARLIAMENTARIAN

The County Attorney shall serve as the Parliamentarian to the Board.

SECTION J: QUORUM AND MANNER OF VOTING

A majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the purpose of conducting Board
business. If a quorum is not present, those in attendance shall adjourn to a later time
when a quorum is present to transact business.

No ordinance or resolution appropriating money exceeding the sum of $500.00, imposing
taxes or authorizing the borrowing of money shall be passed except by a recorded
affirmative vote of a majority of all members elected to the Board.

SECTION K: RULES OF ORDER

The proceedings of the Board, except as otherwise provided within these Rules of
Procedures and applicable State law, shall be governed by Robert’s Rules of Order,
Newly Revised pertaining to conducting business for small boards, in effect at the time of
the action.

In general:
PROCEDURE IN SMALL BOARDS: In a board meeting where there are not more than

a dozen members present, some of the formality that is necessary in a large assembly
would hinder business. The rules governing such meetings are different from the rules
that hold in assemblies, in the following respects:

Members are not required to obtain the floor before making motions or
speaking, which they can do while seated.

Initially Adopted: January 4, 2005



2024

Motions need not be seconded.

There is no limit to the number of times a member can speak to a question,
and motions to close or limit debate generally should not be entertained.

Informal discussion of a subject is permitted while no motion is pending.

The Chairman can speak in discussion without rising or leaving the chair;
and, subject to rule or custom within the particular board (which should be
uniformly followed regardless of how many members are present), he
usually can make motions and usually votes on all questions.

SECTION L: MEETINGS

Regular Meetings

A. All regular meetings of the Board shall be open to the public, except certain
specific exempt topics identified in Section 2.2-3711 of the Code of Virginia.

B. The Board shall hold regular meetings on such days as may be prescribed by
resolution at the annual or organizational meeting in January of each year, but
which shall not be less frequent than once a month, barring unforeseen
circumstances or inclement weather. The Board shall give notice of the date,
time and location of its meetings by placing a notice in a public location at
which notices are regularly posted and in the office of the Clerk. The notice
shall be posted at least three days prior to the meeting. In addition to the
above methods of posting notices, the Clerk may also post meeting notices by
electronic means.

C. Regular meetings, without further public notice, may be continued from day
to day or time to time or place to place, not beyond the time fixed for the next
regular meeting, until the business before the Board is completed.

D. If the Chairman or the Vice-Chairman, if the Chairman is unable to act, finds
and declares that the weather or other conditions are such that it is hazardous
for the Board members to attend a regular meeting, the regular meeting shall
be continued until the following Tuesday, with the exception of holidays,
following the date of a regular meeting. Such conditions shall be
communicated to the members of the Board, the public and the media as
promptly as possible. All public hearings and other matters previously
advertised shall be conducted at the continued meeting and no further
advertisement is required.

E. When a regularly scheduled meeting falls on a legal holiday, the meeting shall
be held on the next following regular business day, without action of any kind

Initially Adopted: January 4, 2005



2024

of the Board, unless the meeting is cancelled by a majority vote of the Board
or rescheduled by resolution as set forth in Paragraph G of this Section.

F. All regular meetings of the Board shall be held in the Highland Modular
Conference Center, unless otherwise noted.

G. The Board may by resolution, when necessary, change the date, time or place
of the regular meeting. The resolution shall set forth the circumstances
necessitating such change. A copy of the resolution shall be posted on the
door of the initial meeting place and published in a newspaper having general
circulation in the county at least seven days prior to the first such meeting at
the other date, time or place. Notice of such change shall also be posted in a
public location at which notices are regularly posted and in the office of the
Clerk at least three days prior to the meeting to be held pursuant to such
change.

H. Except for properly called closed meetings as permitted by state law, all
regular meetings of the Board and official committees of the Board shall be
open to the media, freely subject to recording by radio, television and
photography at any time, provided that such arrangements do not interfere
with the orderly conduct of the meetings under such rules as the Board may
prescribe.

Special Meetings

A. The Chairman or two members of the Board may call special meetings of the
Board whenever in their opinion the public business may require it.

B. Whenever a special meeting shall be called, the Clerk shall notify each
member of the Board and the County Attorney in writing delivered either in
person or by notice left at his/her place of residence or business, stating the
date, time and place of the meeting and the purpose for which such meeting is
called. No matter not specified in the notice shall be considered at such
meeting, unless all members are present.

C. The notice may be waived if all members of the Board attend the special
meeting or sign a waiver.

D. Notice to the public of a special meeting shall be given contemporaneously
with the notice provided members of the Board.

Work Sessions

The Board may meet informally in work sessions which shall be open to the general
public, at the call of the Clerk or of any member of the Board, to review forthcoming
programs of the County, receive progress reports on current programs or projects, or

Initially Adopted: January 4, 2005



2024

receive other similar information from the Clerk, provided that all discussions and
conclusions thereon shall be informal.

Closed Meetings

Closed meetings may be held in accordance with the provisions of the Virginia Freedom
of Information Act, as amended.

During closed session all confidential and privileged information documents,
information, and discussions from a closed session, attorney-client privileged
communication and other confidential information shall not be disclosed without the
approval of the Board. In the event confidential or privileged information is released or
otherwise disclosed, without the consent of the Board, then the Board shall vote to either
authorize the disclosure or reaffirm the confidentiality and/or claim of privilege. In
addition, the Board may, in its discretion, sanction or censure a member for improper
disclosure of confidential or privileged information

SECTION M: ORDER OF BUSINESS

Agenda Preparation

A. The Clerk shall prepare the agenda for each regular meeting conforming to the
agenda format approved by the Board. Except as permitted at the discretion
of the Clerk, each item to be placed on the agenda shall be received in the
Office of the Clerk before the close of the work day on the Monday one week
prior to any regular meeting of the Board.

B. It is recognized that from time to time matters shall arise after the normal cut-
off for items to be placed on the agenda. In such cases, items shall be added
to the agenda if the matter is received by the Clerk not later than 12:00 p.m.
on the day of the meeting.

C. The Clerk shall docket all items requested for the agenda. If, in the opinion of
the Clerk, an item is not appropriate for consideration by the Board, he/she
shall inform the Chairman, and if the Chairman is in agreement, the Board
shall discuss at a public meeting whether to entertain the item.

D. The Board shall consider all items docketed on the agenda before taking any
other items unless an undocketed item is brought by consent of the Board,
provided no Board member objects.

E. Time permitting, items not on the agenda shall be heard as the final items of
the Board’s business. If, in the opinion of the Chairman or the Board, time
does not permit hearing items not on the agenda, such items shall be carried
over to the next regular or special meeting.

Initially Adopted: January 4, 2005



F.

2024

The agenda packages shall be transmitted by the Clerk to the Board by the
close of business on the Thursday prior to the regular meeting using whatever
means of delivery he/she deems best suitable to insure the Board members
have the agenda packages prior to the regular meeting.

Order of Business

The order of business at Board of Supervisor meetings is normally as follows unless the
Clerk in drawing up the Agenda shall find good cause to change it:

Minutes

A,

ZrASCZQTOUOW

Call to Order

Approval of Minutes

Public Hearings/Public Appearances

Public Comments on Agenda Items

Items for Action, Discussion, Review or Information
Old Business

New Business

County Administrator’s Reports, Requests and Recommendations
Board Comments

Consent Agenda

Open Public Comments

Closed Meeting (as needed)

. Adjourn / Recess

Minutes of all regular and special meetings and work sessions shall be
recorded in an official Minute Book. Such minutes shall be maintained in the
office of the Clerk. The minutes shall reflect:

(1) The date, time and place of the meeting or session;

(2) The members recorded as either present or absent;

(3) A concise statement of all matters proposed, discussed or decided;

(4) A notation of the memorandum and exhibits which accompany the
matter before the Board which shall be filed with the Clerk’s records
of the meeting.

(5) The specific and full text of each motion, substitute motion, and
amendment considered by the Board. The result of the vote, passage
or failure, shall be noted and the vote of each member recorded.

(6) Such other matters as the Clerk shall deem necessary to provide a
complete, accurate and understandable record of the deliberations of
the Board.

. Minutes taken during a previous Board meeting will be distributed to the

members of the Board with the Board package for review prior to the meeting
of the Board at which approval is requested. It shall not be necessary to read
the minutes aloud at the Board meeting prior to approval. Minutes of prior
board meetings will be deemed to be approved as submitted, unless a

Initially Adopted: January 4, 2005



2024

correction is requested by a member of the Board and approved by the vote of
a majority of Board members.

C. Minutes of work sessions and other informal meetings of the Board where no
formal action is taken shall be summary in nature, indicating the date, time
and place of the meeting, members of the Board in attendance, persons
making presentations before the Board, and the topic or topics of the work
session or discussion.

D. Minutes may be kept for closed meetings, but are not required. If minutes are
kept for a lawfully closed meeting, the minutes are exempt from required
public inspection under the Virginia Freedom of Information Act, as amended.

E. Audio or video tapes of Board meetings, if created, shall be deemed public
records and are subject to the provisions of the Virginia Freedom of
Information Act, as amended.

Public Hearings

It is the purpose and objective of the Board of Supervisors to give each citizen an
opportunity to express his/her views at public hearings and to give all speakers equal
treatment and courtesy. To accomplish this objective, it is necessary that certain rules of
procedure prevail at all hearings of the Board of Supervisors. Public Hearing Rules of
Procedure adopted by the Board of Supervisors on September 7, 2004 are attached and
incorporated herein.

Public Comment Period

The Board shall set aside, near the beginning of each regular monthly meeting, a period
for public comment on items included on the current meeting’s agenda. A short period
shall be set aside near the end of the meeting for open public comments. Citizen
Comment Rules of Procedure adopted by the Board of Supervisors on September 7, 2004
are attached and incorporated herein.

Board Comments

This time is generally used for individual Board members to share information with other
members of the Board and the public or to present matters not listed on the agenda.

Consent Agenda

The purpose of the Consent Agenda is to provide a method for the expeditious handling
of items, which, in the opinion of the Clerk and the Chairman, will not require discussion
and will be approved unanimously by the Board.

Initially Adopted: January 4, 2005



2024

SECTION N: APPROVAL TO PAY PAYROLL AND ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
WARRANTS

A. Consistent with Code of Virginia, Section 15.2-1243, the Board of
Supervisors grants to the Clerk the authority to audit and approve for payment
on their behalf warrants for valid accounts payable and payroll activity.

B. The Clerk’s approval will be documented in writing on a check transmittal
that will accompany the warrants when they are forwarded to the Treasurer for
signature.

C. All warrants must be presented to the Board of Supervisors for action as a
consent agenda item at their regular meeting.

SECTION O: RULES

A. The Rules of Procedures may be suspended at any time, for a given board
meeting, by a majority vote of the Board of Supervisors.

B. The Rules of Procedures may be amended by majority vote of the Board of
Supervisors. No notice shall be required for the adoption of any amendments.

C. These Rules of Procedures are not adopted by Ordinance or Resolution and
are not binding on any future Board unless adopted by such Board.

SECTION P: ADOPTION AND AMENDMENTS

Adopted — January 4, 2005

Readopted — January 3, 2006

Readopted — January 3, 2007

Readopted — January 2, 2008

Amendments —

January 3, 2007 Page 1 Section D — Principal Address: insert physical address
January 2, 2008 Page 2 Section F — Tie Breaker: Updated pursuant to Code of
Virginia Section 15.2-1421

Readopted — January 6, 2009

Readopted — January 5, 2010

Readopted — January 4, 2011

Readopted - January 3, 2012

Readopted — January 3, 2013

Readopted — January 8, 2014

Readopted — January 6, 2015

Readopted — January 5, 2016

Readopted — January 3, 2017

Readopted January 9, 2018

Readopted January 8, 2019

Readopted January 7, 2020

Initially Adopted: January 4, 2005



2024

Readopted January 5, 2021
Readopted February 1, 2022
Readopted January 3, 2023
Readopted January 2, 2024
Amendments —

January 2, 2024, Page 5- Closed Meetings: insert During closed session
all confidential and privileged information documents, information, and
discussions from a closed session, attorney-client privileged communication and
other confidential information shall not be disclosed without the approval of the
Board. In the event confidential or privileged information is released or otherwise
disclosed, without the consent of the Board, then the Board shall vote to either
authorize the disclosure or reaffirm the confidentiality and/or ¢laim of privilege.
In addition, the Board may, in its discretion, sanction or censure a member for
improper disclosure of confidential or privileged information.

Initially Adopted: January 4, 2005



Proposed
Scheduled Meetings of the
Highland County Board of Supervisors
For the Year of 2025

Location:  Highland Modular Conference Center, Monterey, Virginia

Date: First Tuesday of Every Month

Time: 7:30 pm
January 7, 2025 7:30pm
February 4, 2025 7:30pm
March 4, 2025 7:30pm
April 1, 2025 7:30pm
May 6, 2025 7:30pm
June 3, 2025 7:30pm
July 1, 2025 7:30pm
August 5, 2025 7:30pm
September 2, 2025 7:30pm
October 7, 2025 7:30pm
November 5, 2025*** 7:30pm
December 2, 2025 7:30pm

***When a regularly scheduled meeting falls on a legal holiday, the meeting
shall be held on the next following regular business day, without action of any
kind of the Board, unless the meeting is cancelled by a majority vote of the Board
or rescheduled by resolution.



Proposed
Scheduled Work Session Meetings of the
Highland County Board of Supervisors
For the Year of 2025

Location:  Highland Modular Conference Center, Monterey, Virginia

Date: Third Wednesday of Every Month

Time: 7:30 pm
January 15, 2025 7:30pm
February 19, 2025 7:30pm
March 19, 2025 7:30pm
April 16, 2025 7:30pm
May 21, 2025 7:30pm
June 18, 2025 7:30pm
July 16, 2025 7:30pm
August 20, 2025 7:30pm
September 17, 2025 7:30pm
October 15, 2025 7:30pm

November 19, 2025 7:30pm
December 17, 2025 7:30pm



HIGHLAND COUNTY CODE OF ETHICS

The citizens and businesses of Highland County, Virginia are entitled to have farr,
ethical, moral, and accountable local government. The effective functioning of
democratic government requires that pubilic officials, both elected and
appointed, comply with both the letter and spirit of the laws and policies
affecting the operations of government; that public officials be independent,
impartial and fair in their judgment and actions; that public office be used for
the public good, not for personal gain; and that public deliberations and

processes be conducted openly, unless legally confidential, in an atmosphere
of respect and civility.

The Highland County Board of Supervisors has adopted this Code of Ethics for its
members:

1. Actin the Public Interest — Everyone will work for the common good of the
people of Highland County and will assure fair and equal tfreatment of all
persons, claims, and transactions coming before the Board of Supervisors.

2. Comply with the Law - Endeavor to comply with all federal, state and
local laws.

3. Conduct of Members — The professional and personal conduct of
members must be above reproach and avoid even the appearance of
impropriety. Members shall refrain from abusive conduct, personal
charges or verbal attacks on the character or motives of other members,
other boards, commissions, committees, the staff, and the public.

4. Respect for Process — Members shall show respect for the processes of
governing and the meaningful involvement of the public.

5. Conduct of Public Meetings — Members shall prepare themselves for
public issues; listen courteously and attentively to all public discussions
before the body; and focus on the business at hand. They shall refrain
from interfering with the orderly conduct of meetings.

6. Decisions Based on Merit — All decisions on the merits and substance of

the matter at hand shall be based on gpplicable laws and ordinances.

Comply with the Virginia Conflict of Interest Laws.

8. Gifts or favors — Grant no special favors or privileges to any individual or
entity based on any outside influence, personal relationship, or a
member's membership in a volunteer agency.

9. Confidentiality - Members should never use any information gained
confidentially in the performance of governmental duties as a means of
making private profit for oneself, one's family, stoff, close family relation,
any business in which a Board member has a personal financial interest, or
furthering any other private interests.

a

1



10.Use of County Resources — Members should use county resources and
county staff only to conduct county business.

11.Representation of Private Interests - Members of the Board shall not
appear on behalf of the private interests of third parties before the Board
of Supervisors.

12. Advocacy — Members shall represent the official policies or positions of the
Board of Supervisors to be best of their ability when designated as
delegates for this purpose. When presenting their individual opinions and
positions, members shall explicitly state they do not represent their body or
Highland County, nor will they allow the inference that they do.

13.Positive Work Place Environment - Treat the public, staff and each other
with professionalism, courtesy and respect. Respect all opinions and
maintain a professional atmosphere in both public and private meetings.

ADOPTED this ___ day of , 2024,

THE HIGHLAND COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

X

Henry Budzinski, Chair

X X

Harry Sponaugle Paul 5. Trible



Highland County
Public Schools

240 Myers Moon Road - P.O. Box 250 + Montaray, VA 24465 - P: (540) 468-6300 - F: (540) 463-6306
Drew R. Mgerz, Superintendent

December 12, 2024

Highland County Board of Supervisors
P.O.Box 130

Monterey, VA 24465

Highland County Board of Supervisors,

The Highland County School Board respectfully requests the 3rd quarter budget appropriation
for the 2024-2025 school year.

Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Sincerely,

Ken\n\glogges

School Board Chairman

Toki Upen

Tabitha Ulmer
School Board Clerk




Executive Assistant to the County Administrator

This is a full-time, hourly position that will remain open until filled.

The successful candidate will work in the office of the County Administrator in Monterey, Va., and at her
direction. The successful candidate will primarily work from 8:30 a.m. to 4.30 p.m., Monday-Friday, with
occasional after hours work required.

Duties:

sProvide administrative support and assistance to the County Administrator.

*Perform clerical and administrative tasks including drafting letters, memos, invoices, reports,
and other documents.

+Receive incoming communications or memaos on behalf of Constitutional officers; review
content, determine importance, and summarize and/or distribute contents to appropriate staff.

¢Perform office tasks including maintaining records, ordering supplies, filing and basic
bookkeeping.

sPerform additional duties as assigned.

Requirements:

eExcellent verbal and written communication skills.

eExcellent organizational skills and attention to detail.

sExcellent time management skills with a proven ability to meet deadlines.

»Ability to function well in a high-paced and often stressful environment.

eExtensive knowledge of office administration, clerical procedures, and recordkeeping systems,

eAbility to demonstrate proficiency with Microsoft Office Suite or similar software with the
ability to learn new or updated software.

¢High school diploma; bachelor’'s degree in business administration or a related field preferred.

*At least four years of related experience.

Physical Requirements:

eProlonged periods sitting at a desk and working on a computer.

eMust be able to lift up to 25 pounds at times.

For additional information or to submit a resume and request an interview, please contact Jerri
Botkin in the Office of the County Administrator, 540-468-2347; P. 0. Box 130, Monterey, VA; or
in person at 165 W. Main Street, Monterey, VA 24465. Highland County is an Equal Opportunity
Employer.



